

Phone: 03 9458 2200

Address: 179 Northern Rd, Heidelberg Heights VIC 3081

Email: heidendo@gmail.com

DAY PROCEDURE SURGERY BY-LAWS

CONTENTS

- 1. FOREWORD
- 2. INTERPRETATION AND GENERAL PROVISIONS
 - 2.1 Definition and Interpretation
 - 2.2 Chief Executive Office/Director of Nursing
 - 2.3 Executive Staff
 - 2.4 Day Surgery Committee
 - 2.5 Executive Management Committee
 - 2.6 Governance Committee
- 3. PART B: APPOINTMENT OF ACCREDITED PRACTITIONERS
 - 3.1 Categories of Accredited Practitioners
 - 3.2 Tier Status of Accredited Practitioners
 - 3.3 Term of Appointment of Accredited Practitioners
 - 3.4 Application for Accreditation as a Visiting Medical/Dental or Allier Health Practitioner
 - 3.5 Confidentiality
 - 3.6 Process of Application for Clinical Privileges
 - 3.7 Consideration of Application for Accreditation Form
 - 3.8 Notification of Decision
 - 3.9 Temporary Appointment
 - 3.10 Terms and Conditions of Appointment
 - 3.11 Appeal Rights
 - 3.12 Amendment of Privileges
 - 3.13 Review of Clinical Privileges
 - 3.14 Suspension
 - 3.15 Appeal Procedure
- 4. PART C: MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
 - 4.1 Medical Advisory Committee
 - 4.2 Power to Co-Opt
 - 4.3 Role of Medical Advisory Committee
 - 4.4 Meetings of Medical Advisory Committee
 - 4.5 Proceedings of Medical Advisory Committee
 - 4.6 Qualified Privilege
- 5. PART D: GENERAL PROVISIONS
 - 5.1 Conflict of Interest
 - 5.2 Medical Treatment of Family Members
 - 5.3 New Innovative Treatment
 - 5.4 Disputes
 - 5.5 Revision

1. FOREWORD

The By-Laws mandate the Accreditation, Credentialing, Re-accreditation process for defining and amending the Scope of Clinical Practice for Medical Practitioners providing services at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre. Participants of the Medical Advisory Committee (MAC) and related medical and facility committees shall, in carrying out their roles, act in the best interests of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and apply their endeavors diligently, in good faith and in accordance with the By-Laws. The By-Laws contain several requirements to assist in the process of recommending medical appointments, confidentiality, conflicts of interest and no representations of acting on behalf of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre. Comments and suggestions for improving the By-Laws should be referred to Mr. Devan Gya, Medical Director. The safety and quality of healthcare is dependent on the competence and expertise of the health professionals who deliver that care. It is essential that clinical governance requirements are established that scrutinise and verify the qualifications, experience and professional status of health professionals, and assess on an ongoing basis the competence, performance and professional suitability of individuals to provide high quality health care specific to the patient's needs and the Day Surgery's capability. The delineation of an individual practitioner's scope of practice should be based on an assessment of his or her clinical specialisation and experience, according to current and nationally accepted standards for the recognition and registration of specialist medical practitioners. Mr. Devan Gya.

Date: 9th June 2023

2. INTERPRETATION AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

2.1 Definition and Interpretation

In these By-Laws, unless inconsistent with the context:

"ACCREDITATION" means and refers to the process of credentialing by which a Practitioner is granted authority to provide health care services at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

"ACCREDITED PRACTITIONER" means a Medical Practitioner (also known as a Visiting Medical Practitioner) appointed or employed by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and granted Clinical Privileges. Appointment as an Accredited Practitioner under these By-Laws is a prerequisite to practice at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

"ACT" means all relevant Acts of Parliaments, State or Federal, and extends and includes all By-laws and regulations made there under and in force from time to time which is intended to cover the regulation of Private Day Surgeries.

"AHPRA" means the Australian health Practitioner Regulation Agency established under the health Practitioner Regulation National Law Act 2009 which came into effect on 1 July 2010.

"APPLICATION FOR ACCREDITATION FORM" means the Application for Accreditation Forms approved for use by a Medical Practitioner to apply for Accreditation and Clinical Privileges at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

"BY-LAWS" means these By-Laws as amended from time to time.

"CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER" means the person appointed as the senior executive in Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre by the Medical Director and in the absence of that person shall include the person appointed to act in that position for the time being.

"CLINICAL DEPARTMENT" means a department or section of Accredited Practitioners in like sub-specialties, as approved by the Medical Advisory Committee.

"CLINICAL PRIVILEGES and DEFINING THE SCOPE OF PRACTICE" means the specific medical services, surgical procedures permitted to be undertaken by Accredited Practitioners.

"CREDENTIALING" means the formal process used to verify the qualifications experience, professional standing and other relevant professional attributes of an Accredited Practitioner for the purpose of forming a view about their competence, performance and professional suitability to provide safe, high quality health care services.

"CREDENTIALS" means the qualifications, professional training, clinical experience current registration status, indemnity insurance, training and experience in leadership, research, education, communication and teamwork that contribute to the competence, performance and professional suitability to provide safe, high quality health care services at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

"CURRENT FITNESS" is the current fitness required of an applicant Accredited Practitioner to carry out the clinical privileges sought or currently held. A person is not to be considered as having current fitness if that person suffers from any physical or mental impairment, disability, condition or disorder which detrimentally affects or is likely to detrimentally affect the person's physical or mental capacity to practice medicine or nursing (as the case may be) and carry out the Clinical Privileges sought or granted. Habitual drunkenness or addiction to deleterious drugs is a physical or mental disorder.

"DIRECTOR OF MEDICAL SERVICES" also known as a Medical Director "CEO" howsoever termed means the person appointed by the Medical Director to that position and in the absence of that person the person appointed to act in that position for the time being.

"HEIDELBERG ENDOSCOPY EXECUTIVE BOARD" means the Executive Committee established under these By-Laws. This is a combined committee which oversees the financial and strategic direction of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Revised Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[3]

"EXECUTIVE STAFF" means executive staff appointed.

"FELLOW PRACTITIONER" means a Medical Practitioner not yet recognised as a specialist in their nominated category, for the purpose of the Health Insurance Act 1973 (Comm) but training to become a specialist in a nominated category and working in that specialty under the supervision of a Specialist Practitioner.

"GENERAL PRACTITIONER" means a Medical Practitioner registered as such in the State/Territory.

"HEALTH DEPARTMENT" means the State/Territory/Australian Department of Health.

"DAY SURGERY" means Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre subject to these By-Laws.

"MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE" means the medical advisory committee established pursuant to these By-Laws.

"MEDICAL PRACTITIONER" has the same meaning as in the registration act for medical practitioners in the State/Territory.

"NOTIFIABLE CONDUCT" has the same meaning prescribed to that term in the Health Practitioner Regulation National Law Act 2009.

"POLICY STATEMENTS" means and refers to policy statements and directives in relation to the conduct of Accredited Practitioners or clinical practice issued by the Day Surgery.

"PROFESSIONAL MISCONDUCT" has the same meaning prescribed to that term in the Health Practitioner Regulation National Law Act 2009.

"**REGULATION**" means a regulation made under any Act relevant to the undertaking of the business of a private Day Surgery.

"REPORTABLE CONDUCT" means any serious offence against children, as envisaged by applicable child protection legislation in any jurisdiction, including but not limited to neglect, assault, or sexual offence omitted against, with or in the presence of a child (including child pornography offences).

"SPECIALIST PRACTITIONER" means a Medical Practitioner who has been recognised as a specialist in their nominated category, for the purpose of the Health Insurance Act 1973 (Comm).

"STATE" refers to the State/Territory in which Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre operates.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Revised Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[4]

Interpretation In these By-Laws, headings are for convenience only and do not affect interpretation.

The following rules also apply in interpreting these By-Laws, except where the context makes it clear that a rule is not intended to apply. (i) A reference to legislation (including subordinate legislation) is to that legislation as amended, re-enacted or replaced, and includes any subordinate legislation issued under it. (ii) A reference to a document or agreement, or a provision of a document or agreement, is to that document, agreement or provision as amended, supplemented, replaced or novated. (iii) A singular word includes the plural, and vice versa. (iv) A word which suggests one gender includes the other gender. (v) If a word is defined, another part of speech has a corresponding meaning. (vi) If an example is given of something (including a right, obligation or concept), such as by saying it includes something else, the example does not limit the scope of that thing.

Titles In these By-Laws where there is use of the title chairperson the incumbent of that position for the time being may choose to use whichever designation that person so wishes.

Quorum / meetings Where a reference is made to a meeting, the following quorum requirements shall apply: (i) Where there is an odd number of members of the committee or group, a majority of the members; or (ii) Where there is an even number of members of the committee or group, one half of the number of the members plus one. A decision may be made by a committee or group established pursuant to these Bylaws (except that established by By-Law 24) without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth such a decision is signed by all the committee or group members, as the case may be. A committee or group established pursuant to these By-Laws may hold any meeting by electronic means whereby participants can be heard and can hear but are not necessarily in the same place. The requirements of these By-Laws shall nonetheless apply to such a meeting.

Confidentiality and privacy Information provided to any committee or person which is provided in confidence shall be regarded as confidential and is not to be disclosed to any third party or beyond the forum purposes which such information is made available. Any committee or person who is appointed under these By-Laws must comply with all relevant privacy laws. (e) Voting where required by these By-Laws, voting shall be on a simple majority voting basis and only by those in attendance at the meeting.

2.2 Chief Executive Officer and Director or Nursing

The Medical Director shall appoint a CEO and DON of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre. The CEO shall: (a) Be the senior officer of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre to whom all staff, through their respective department head, shall be responsible; (b) Be the spokesperson and channel for all communications to and from Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (c) Advise the Executive Committee on matters relating to the purchase of major equipment; (d) Be responsible for the management and patient care of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre, its facilities, staff and resources, to acceptable standards in accordance with the policies and directives of the Executive Committee; (e) Ensure due observance of the Act, all other statutes, Department instructions and determinations, these By-Laws and all other legal requirements; and (f) Act as Secretary Medical Advisory Committee (g) Ensure that suitable standards (including but not limited to clinical standards) are maintained to provide a satisfactory and safe environment for both patients and staff; (h) As required, co-operate in the planning of additional facilities and services; (i) Ensure availability at all times, either personally or by delegation of authority, to meet any emergency or contingency that may arise. At such time as an additional DON is appointed this role shall report to the CEO and be responsible for: (j) For advice on matters of nursing and relevant clinical policies; (k) For ensuring that nursing staff are provided at a level that will ensure a safe and optimum level of patient care;

DIRECTOR OF MEDICAL SERVICES This is the licensee of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre the Medical Director shall; (a) Ensure that suitable clinical standards are maintained to provide a satisfactory and safe environment for patients, visitors and staff; (b) Oversee the process of appointment and credentialing of Accredited Practitioners; (c) Ensure that medical staff are provided at a level to maintain a safe and optimum level of patient care; (d) Ensure compliance with the relevant statutory requirements; (f) Actively participate in all activities of the Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Board; and (g) Ensure availability at all times either personally or by the delegation of authority to meet any emergency or contingency that may arise.

2.3 Executive Staff

The CEO may appoint any other executive staff members he or she deems appropriate for Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre including determining the role of such an appointment.

2.4 Staff meetings

Apart from the Medical Advisory Committee the CEO may establish committees/ staff meetings to assist in the management and operations of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre. The CEO shall: (a) Determine the membership of a committee; (b) Determine the terms of reference of a committee; (c) Determine rights of attendance at a committee; (d) Determine committee voting; (e) Determine minimum meeting requirements; and (f) Determine other matters pertaining to the appropriate operation or reporting of the committee.

2.5 Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Board

The Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Board shall be responsible for financial and strategic matters relevant to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre as a minimum: (a) The Director of Medical Services (b) The CEO, Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (c) Director of Nursing, Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (d) Accountant (e) Accounts Payable Officer

3. PART B; APPOINTMENT OF ACCREDITED PRACTITIONERS

3.1 Categories of Accredited Practitioners

Each person appointed as an Accredited Practitioner to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre shall be appointed to one or more of the following categories: (a) Specialist Practitioner; (b) General Practitioner; (c) Fellow Practitioner; (d) Surgical Assistant with one or more of the following privileges: (e) Consulting privileges; (f) Assist privileges; (g) Anaesthetic privileges; (h) Operating privileges; (i) Diagnostic privileges.

3.2 Tier Status of Accredited Practitioners

The CEO may decide to implement a tier status of Accredited Practitioners at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre at any time.

3.3 Term of Appointment of Accredited Practitioners

All appointments to a position of Accredited Practitioner shall, unless otherwise determined by the Board, be for a period of up to three years. (As per Regulations 7A {3a, b, c, d}).

3.4 Application for Accreditation as a Visiting Medical Practitioner

The CEO/DON or delegate shall provide each Medical Practitioner seeking appointment with an Application for Accreditation Form that must be submitted when seeking appointment as an Accredited Practitioner. A copy of the By-Laws and any relevant material must be provided to the Medical Practitioner at time of application.

3.5 Confidentiality

The proceedings involved in granting appointment and clinical privileges to an Accredited Practitioner are confidential and not to be disclosed outside the forum concerned.

Such confidentiality provisions shall also apply to any confidential information and to any committee or sub-committee of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre.

3.6 Process of Application for Clinical Privileges

A Medical Practitioner seeking appointment or re-appointment as an Accredited Practitioner shall complete an Application for Accreditation Form and provide such a form to the CEO or delegate.

3.7 Consideration of Application for Accreditation Form

Following receipt of a completed Application for Accreditation Form: (a) The CEO or delegate shall refer a duly completed Application for Accreditation Form to the Medical Advisory Committee. (b) The Medical Advisory Committee shall review the application and satisfy itself as to the training, experience, competence, judgment, professional capabilities and knowledge, Current Fitness, character and confidence held in the applicant and make recommendations as to the delineation of clinical privileges. (c) Following a determination of its recommendations the Medical Advisory Committee shall then satisfy itself as to the training, experience, competence, judgment, professional capabilities and knowledge, current fitness, character and confidence held in the applicant and make recommendations as to the appointment or re-appointment; (d) Following a determination of its recommendation the Medical Advisory Committee shall forward such recommendation to the Executive through the CEO; (e) The Medical Director shall make a final determination as to the application.

3.8 Notification of Decision

Within fourteen days of arriving at its decision, the Medical Advisory Committee (however so titled) shall communicate its decision to the CEO who shall notify the applicant in writing of such decision within seven days. The notification will include in the letter the scope of practice.

3.9 Temporary Appointment

The CEO may approve temporary appointments of an Accredited Practitioner after referral to the chairperson of the Medical Advisory Committee. Clinical Privileges granted under this By-Law shall remain in force until the determination by the Medical Advisory Committee following the meeting or for a period not exceeding three months. Temporary appointment as Accredited Practitioner shall be notified in writing by the standard letter for temporary appointments.

3.10 Terms and Conditions of Appointment

Appointment of an Accredited Practitioner shall be conditional on the practitioner: (a) Complying with the provisions of the relevant Articles of Legislation, and with the By-Laws, rules and policies and procedures of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (b) Attending patients subject to the limits of any conditions imposed by the Admissions Inclusions and Exclusions Policy endorsed by the Executive, Medical Advisory Committee; (c) Taking all reasonable steps to ensure that adequate documentation fulfilling

medico-legal requirements in the Day Surgery medical records are maintained for all patients under their care in accordance with statutory and the Day Surgery accreditation body and Department of Health Licensing Standards. (i) Provide any data reasonably required by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre to enable the collection of revenue including but not limited to discharge summaries and CMBS item numbers, including prompt notification to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre of any subsequent change or addition to the item numbers; (d) Observing all reasonable requests made by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre with regard to personal conduct in Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and with regard to the provision of services within the Day Surgery. (e) Adhering to the generally accepted ethics of professional practice both in relation to colleagues, Day Surgery staff and to patients under his/her care; (f) Observing the general conditions of clinical practice applicable to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre as set out in the relevant policies issued by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre from time to time; (g) Maintaining an adequate level of professional indemnity membership and/or insurance as approved from time to time by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and set out in the then current Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre Professional Indemnity Minimum Standards for Accredited Practitioners Guidelines with an approved medical indemnity organisation or insurer and covering the clinical privileges granted; (h) Furnishing annually to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre, documentary evidence of professional indemnity membership and/or insurance including the level of cover and any material changes to cover that occurred during the last 12 months and furnishing annually to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre documentary evidence of medical registration under the registration Act for medical practitioners in the State/Territory; (i) Advising Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre in writing as soon as possible but no later than 14 days of the occurrence: (i) Should an adverse finding be made against him / her by AHPRA; or; (ii) His / her professional registration be revoked or amended; or (iii) Professional indemnity membership be made conditional or not be renewed; or (iv) His or her appointment or clinical privileges at any other facility, Day Surgery or day procedure centre alters in any way; (j) Participating in any clinical quality assurance program approved by the Medical Advisory Committee; (k) Adhering to the rules of medical practice established by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre including compliance with the Australian Commission of Safety and Quality in Health Care National Standards; (I) Advising Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre if they are charged with having committed or are convicted of a sex or violence offence and providing authority to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre to conduct a criminal history check with the appropriate authorities at any time; (m) Not representing in any way that they represent a member of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre in any circumstances, including the use of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre letterhead, unless with the express written permission of the CEO; (n) Being available, or deputising an appropriately qualified Accredited Practitioner for emergency calls with the Accredited Practitioner's patients; (o) Participation in reasonable education activities of the staff as required particularly in relation to any junior medical staff; (p) Seeking the approval of the Medical Advisory Committee in regard to any substantially new or substantially amended use of technology or procedures to treat patients, or any new or amended use of technology or procedures to treat patients which may substantially increase the risk to patients; (q) Meeting all reasonable requests to participate in the education and training of medical and other professional nursing and technical staff of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and, in the education and training of students attending Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre including facilitating the availability of patients for clinical teaching subject to:

- (i) Any contrary instructions by either the treating practitioner; or (ii) The Director of Nursing and (iii) Informed consent being given by the patient;
- (r) Regularly attend and when reasonably so required participate in such pertinent clinical meetings, seminars, lectures and other training programs as may be organised and held at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (s) Utilising as surgical assistants only those practitioners appointed in accordance with these By-Laws; (t) Complying with any statutory regimes as required by any working with children legislation or legislation with similar objectives applicable to medical practitioners; (u) Comply with submitting evidence of all completed mandatory training in the following areas but not limited to:
 - (i) Hand Hygiene (ii) Aseptic Non touch Technique (iii) Open Disclosure (iv) Advanced Life Support (v) Manual Handling (vi) Cultural Diversity (vii) Aggression prevention and intervention (v) Provide details of any patient treated at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre presenting with any signs of a post-operative infection at follow up appointment or notified to them by way of General Practitioner or other facility.

Responsibility for patients:

- (a) Accredited Practitioners must obtain from patients all relevant consents including:
 - (i) Explanation of treatment; (ii) Consent to treatment; (iii) Informing each patient of material risks associated with treatment; (iv) Appropriate consent in relation to privacy matters, including the collection, use and disclosure of health information for which consent is required; (v) Appropriate consent in relation to financial matters; and (vi) Other consents as required by law. (vii) Where appropriate, consent must be obtained in written form signed by the patient; (viii) Accept full responsibility for his or her patients from admission until discharge, or until the care of the patient is transferred to another Accredited Practitioner (ix) Visit a patient within 24 hours of admission and thereafter with reasonable frequency having regard to each patient's clinical condition and needs.
- (b) Complying with all laws and Day Surgery policies and procedures in relation to Infection Control, Hand Hygiene, Occupational Safety and Health, antidiscrimination, bullying and harassment.
- (c) The availability of theatre sessions will be at the discretion of the CEO and/or DON, considering matters including but not limited to theatre session and nursing availability, and the usage by the Accredited Practitioner of sessions previously allocated to that Accredited Practitioner.
- (d) The right of the Accredited Practitioner to admit a patient to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre will always be subject to approval by the CEO and/or DON. The CEO and/or DON will be entitled to refuse admission of any patient without giving a reason.
- (e) The CEO and/ or DON will always have the right to require the transfer of a patient and will make reasonable efforts to notify the Accredited Practitioner and the patient if the transfer of the patient is required. The Accredited Practitioner will be required to assist in making all

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[10]

necessary arrangements for transfer of the patient, including notifying the relatives of the patient and where necessary arranging the admission of the patient to another Day Surgery or facility.

(f) Participate in the Day Surgery Open Disclosure process in the event of a significant incident.

ANAESTHETICS (Excluding Local)

- (a) All patients who undergo anaesthesia must be seen by the Anaethetist prior to the Anaesthetic being administered and an ASA score completed and recorded.
- (b) Anaesthetic administered at WDS shall comply with all standards of the Australian and New Zealand college of Anaethetist.
- (c) The Anaethetist must be available to maintain Patient Care for 24 hours following a procedure or ensure cover by another Accredited Anaethetist should this be required.
- (d) The Anaesthetic record must be completed appropriately and include details of:
 - (i) All drugs administered, and procedure undertaken as part of the Anaesthetic 17 (ii) The patient's condition and observations during the Anaesthetic (iii) Any special post Anaesthetic observations and care required and include a contact telephone number in the event of any complication and concern.

3.11 Appeal Rights

- (a) There shall be no right of appeal against a decision not to make an initial appointment.
- (b) Should an applicant holding a current appointment have that appointment rejected either in whole or in part or varied by the Executive, the applicant shall have the rights of appeal set out within these By-Laws.

3.12 Amendment of Privileges

- (a) Any Accredited Practitioner, at any time, may make application for amendment of his/her Clinical Privileges.
- (b) The CEO shall ensure any such application to be forwarded to the Medical Advisory Committee.
- (c) The Medical Advisory Committee shall then consider the relevant recommendations concerning the application and, on reaching its decision, it shall within fourteen days, communicate its decision to the CEO who shall in turn advise the Accredited Practitioner of such decision within seven days.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[11]

3.13 Review of Clinical Privileges

The Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Committee or Medical Director may:

- (a) At any time, direct the Medical Advisory Committee through the CEO, to review the Clinical Privileges previously granted to an Accredited Practitioner including an assessment if necessary, of Current Fitness and confidence held in such an appointee and following such review, and the CEO/DON, shall make a recommendation to the Medical Director concerning the continuation, amendment, suspension or revocation of those clinical privileges; or
- (b) Require an independent review of the Clinical Privileges, practice or appointment of any Accredited Practitioner. The report of such a review may include an assessment if necessary, of Current Fitness and confidence held in such an appointee and such a review may concern the continuation, amendment, suspension or revocation of Clinical Privileges. Such a review process shall be to the Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Committee who shall make a final determination in relation to the matter.

3.14 Suspension

The Medical Director may, following consultation with the Chairperson of the Medical Advisory Committee, suspend any Accredited Practitioner should the CEO of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre believe it is in the interests of patient care or safety or if the CEO believes the conduct of the Accredited Practitioner is such that it is unduly hindering the efficient operation of the Day Surgery at any time.

The CEO shall notify the Accredited Practitioner of his/her decision including reasons why the Clinical Privileges have been suspended or revoked.

The affected Accredited Practitioner shall have the rights of appeal established by these By-Laws.

3.15 Appeal Procedure

- (a) An Accredited Practitioner shall have fourteen (14) days from the date of notification of a decision not to re-appoint the practitioner as an Accredited Practitioner or against a decision altering the Clinical Privileges of the Accredited Practitioner to lodge an appeal against the decision. Such an appeal must be in writing.
- (b) The Medical Director shall nominate a Committee ("the Appeal Committee") to hear the appeal. The Appeal Committee shall comprise:
 - (i) A nominee of the Executive Committee; (ii) A nominee of the Medical Advisory Committee; and (iii) A nominee of the appropriate professional college of the appellant.
- (c) The chairperson of the Appeal Committee shall be the nominee of the Executive Committee.
- (d) The appellant shall be provided with appropriate notice by the Appeal Committee and can make a submission to the Appeal Committee.

- (e) The Appeal Committee shall determine whether the submission shall be in writing or in person or both. The appellant must provide written submissions for the Appeal Committee within 3 months of request.
- (f) Neither the appellant nor any party shall have legal representation at any meeting of the Appeal Committee.
- (g) The chairperson of the Appeal Committee shall determine any question of procedure for the Appeal Committee.
- (h) The Appeal Committee shall make a written recommendation to the Medical Director who shall consider such a recommendation and decide thereon. The final decision of the Medical Director shall be binding.

TERMINATION OF APPOINTMENT

- (a) An appointment shall be immediately terminated should an Accredited Practitioner cease to be registered.
- (b) Should an Accredited Practitioner fail to notify the day surgery of any restriction to practice, penalties or pending decisions and this would have a direct impact on liability of the organization their rights will be suspended or terminated depending at the discretion of the Medical Director and/or the CEO.
- (c) An appointment shall be terminated should an Accredited Practitioner become permanently incapable of performing his/her duties which shall for the purposes of these By-Laws be a continuous period of six months incapacity.
- (d) An appointment shall be terminated should the Accredited Practitioner not be regarded by the Medical Director as having the appropriate Current Fitness to retain the Clinical Privileges granted or the Medical Director does not have confidence in the continued appointment of the Accredited Practitioner. For the avoidance of doubt, confidence in the continued appointment of the Accredited Practitioner includes, but is not limited to, confidence in the clinical ability and the professional judgment of the Accredited Practitioner to treat patients in accordance with the opinion widely held by a significant number of respected practitioners in the field or if members of the Medical Advisory Committee would have the confidence to be treated themselves or have members of their family treated by the Accredited Practitioner.
- (e) The appointment of an Accredited Practitioner may at any time be suspended or terminated by the Medical Director where:
 - (i) The Accredited Practitioner fails to observe the terms and conditions of his/her appointment including failure to maintain adequate Professional Indemnity Insurance; or (ii) The Accredited Practitioner is found guilty of professional misconduct or unprofessional conduct (however described) by AHPRA which has resulted in suspension or restriction in practice. (iii) The Accredited Practitioner is convicted of a sex or violence offence or any offence in relation to the Accredited Practitioner's practice as a Medical Practitioner or Dentist; or (iv) An independent

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[13]

review has been conducted of the Accredited Practitioner pursuant to By-Law 19(b) and following review of any such report of that review the Board does not have confidence in the continued appointment of the Accredited Practitioner.

- (f) The appointment of an Accredited Practitioner shall be terminated as otherwise provided in these By-Laws.
- (g) An Accredited Practitioner may resign his/her appointment after the expiry of one month after the giving of notice to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre, unless agreed otherwise by the Medical Director.

4. PART C; MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE, CREDENTIALING COMMITTEE

4.1 Medical Advisory Committee

The Medical Advisory Committee shall comprise in addition to those members appointed, the Medical Executive, and the CEO. The Medical Advisory Committee appointed are elected for a 4- year period.

RESIGNATION FROM MEMBERSHIP OF MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Any member of the Medical Advisory Committee may resign from such membership by giving at least one month's notice in writing of their intention to resign such appointment to the CEO.

4.2 Power to Co-Opt

The Medical Advisory Committee may co-opt the services of any other person should it consider this necessary, however, that person or persons shall have no voting rights at any meeting of the Medical Advisory Committee or any sub-committee thereof.

4.3 Role of Medical Advisory Committee

The Medical Advisory Committee shall advise the CEO and: (a) Be the formal organisational structure through which the views of the Accredited Practitioners of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre shall be formulated and communicated; (b) Provide a means whereby Accredited Practitioners can participate in the policy making and planning processes of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre as relevant; (c) Plan and manage a continuing education program relevant to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre for members of the Medical Council as appropriate; (d) Advise the CEO of appropriate policies regarding the clinical organisation of the Facility; (e) Assist in identifying health needs of the community and

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[14]

advise the Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Committee (via the CEO and/or Medical Director) on appropriate services which may be required to meet these needs; (f) Participate in the planning, development and implementation of quality improvement programs at Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (g) Endeavour to ensure that the delivery of patient care in Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre is maintained at an optimal level of quality and efficiency given the resources available; (h) Ensure that a formal mechanism for review of clinical outcomes and management is established and perform such a function in accordance with the requirements of these By- Laws; (i) Consider applications for appointment and reappointment to the Accredited Practitioners of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and give due consideration to the training, experience, competence, judgment, professional capabilities and knowledge, Current Fitness, character and confidence held in any applicant for Accredited Practitioner (j) Review any new or amended use of technology or procedures to treat patients, assessing the facilities of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and other matters which are considered relevant, and make a recommendation on the amendment of the Clinical Privileges of an Accredited Practitioner. (k) Ensure the clinical review monitoring and assessment activities are appropriate to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre; (I) Ensure Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre quality improvement activities satisfy applicable quality assurance statutory requirements including compliance with the Australian Commission of Safety and Quality in Health Care National Standards; (m) Review reports on clinical review and quality improvement activities undertaken.(n) Consider applications for appointment and re-appointment to the Accredited Practitioners of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre and give due consideration to the confidence held in any applicant for Accredited Practitioner and make recommendations thereon.

4.4 Meetings of Medical Advisory Committee

(a) Ordinary meetings of the Medical Advisory Committee shall be held not less than four times a year at a time and place to be determined by the chairperson in consultation with the CEO provided that at least 14 days' notice shall be given of every ordinary meeting. (b) Meetings of the MAC shall review and endorse acceptance of accreditation and reaccreditation. (c) A special meeting of the Medical Advisory Committee may be called by the Chairperson of the Medical Advisory Committee subject to the approval of the CEO. (d) At least 7 days' notice of a special meeting shall be given to all members of the Medical Advisory Committee entitled to attend such a meeting. (e) Notice of a special meeting shall specify the business to be considered and no business of which such notice has not been given shall be considered at such a meeting. (f) Should there be an emergency situation at any time in which it is necessary to obtain the advice of the Medical Advisory Committee the CEO in consultation as necessary with the Medical Executive shall be empowered to undertake such appropriate action for later consideration by the Medical Advisory Committee. (g) No office bearer of the Medical Advisory Committee nor any of its members or subcommittees shall represent in any way that they represent Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre in any circumstances unless with the express written permission of the CEO. Facility letterhead shall only be used for official purposes and not for any other purposes.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[15]

4.5 Proceedings of Medical Advisory Committee

(a) Entitlement to vote at meetings of the Medical Advisory Committee is given under these By-Laws to the Accredited Practitioner members of the Committee. (b) All questions, excepting as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, shall be decided by a show of hands, or where demanded by a member entitled to vote, a ballot and the chairperson of the Medical Advisory Committee shall have a casting vote. (c) Minutes of all meetings of the Medical Advisory Committee shall be recorded by the CEO or delegate. (d) Minutes shall be distributed to all those entitled to attend meetings of the Medical Advisory Committee prior to the next meeting. (e) No business shall be considered at a meeting of the Medical Advisory Committee until the minutes of the previous meeting have been confirmed or otherwise disposed of. No discussion of the minutes shall be permitted except as to their accuracy. (f) Minutes of a meeting shall be confirmed by resolution and signed by the Chairperson at the next meeting and minutes so confirmed and signed shall be taken as evidence of proceedings thereat.

4.6 Qualified Privilege

Qualified Privilege under the relevant State legislation may only be sought with the prior approval of the Medical Director. No other committee or sub-committee of Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre shall seek any such statutory immunity or approval unless with the prior approval of the Medical Director.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[16]

5. PART D; GENERAL PROVISIONS

5.1 Conflict of Interest

- (a) A member of any Day Surgery committee or a person authorised to attend any committee meeting who has a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, a conflict or potential conflict of interest or a direct or indirect material personal interest:
 - (i) In a matter that has been considered or is about to be considered at a meeting such a member or person shall not participate in the relevant discussion or resolution of any such interest or matter nor shall such a person be eligible to hold any office whilst any such interest exists; or (ii) In a thing being done or about to be done by Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre, shall as soon as possible after the relevant facts have come to the person's knowledge, disclose the nature of the interest at the meeting.
- (b) A disclosure by a person at a meeting of the committee that the person:
 - (i) Is a member, or is in the employment of the specified company or other body; (ii) Is a partner, or is in the employment, of a specified person; or (iii) Has some other specified interest relating to a specified company or other body or a specified person; shall be deemed to be a sufficient disclosure of the nature of the interest in any matter or thing relating to that company or other body or to that person which may arise after the date of the disclosure.
- (c) A person who holds a financial interest in Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre shall not be regarded as having a conflict of interest. (d) The committee shall cause particulars of any disclosure made under By-Laws to be recorded and declared by the member or authorised person in writing and addressed to the CEO. (e) The chairperson of the committee shall advise the CEO of any disclosure made pursuant to this By-Law. (f) The CEO and chairperson of the committee shall decide in relation to the disclosure of an interest pursuant to this By-Law. Such determination may, but is not limited to, include making a determination that the member or person will not participate in the meeting when the matter is being considered or that the member or person will not be present while the matter is being considered at the meeting. (g) Subject to the purposes of this By-Law, the fact that a member of the Medical Advisory Committee is a member of a particular discipline shall not be regarded as a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, a conflict or potential conflict of interest or a direct or indirect material personal interest, if that committee member participates in the appointment process of an Accredited Practitioner in the same discipline.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[17]

5.2 Medical Treatment of Family Members

(a) Accredited practitioners wishing to provide medical treatment to an immediate family member, must seek approval from the Director of Nursing. (i) This includes the practitioner's spouse or partner, parents, children, siblings, grandparents and grandchildren.

5.3 New Innovative Treatment

New Innovative Treatment or Techniques

- (a) Should experimental or innovative treatment or techniques be planned in or at the Day Surgery such experimental or innovative treatment or technique shall only commence if:
 - (i) It is to be carried out by an Accredited Practitioner with appropriate Credentialing and Clinical Privileges granted in accordance with these By-Laws to cover the experimental or innovative treatment or technique; and (ii) Such practitioner has submitted details to Heidelberg Endoscopy & Day Surgery Centre Medical Advisory Committee for review and the approval and is satisfied that appropriate insurance cover is in place. If in addition the proposed experimental or innovative treatment or technique may raise ethical issues or the involvement of human subjects, such experimental or innovative treatment or technique shall only commence if approved by the Ethics Committee (however so titled) in accordance with NHMRC Guidelines 26 and such experimental or innovative treatment or technique is conducted in accordance with any approvals provided by that committee.

5.4 Disputes

Any dispute or difference which may arise as to the meaning or interpretation of these By-Laws or as to the powers of any committee or the validity of proceedings of any meeting shall be determined by the Heidelberg Endoscopy Executive Committee.

5.5 Revision

The Executive Committee may after due consultation from time to time make, vary or revoke these By-Laws but they will be reviewed at least every three years after due consultation with the Medical Advisory Committee.

ABN: 88 007 103 380 Version: 2.0 Effective Date: 9th June 2023 Adopted by: MAC 4TH August 2023

[18]